AL ST

Senate . 403

COMMERCE AND LAPOR COMMITTIEE
o April 8, 1975

The meeting was called to order in Room #213 at 12:25 p.m. on Tuesday, April 8, 1975,
with Senator Gene Echols in the chair.

PRESENT: Senator Gene Echols
Senator Warren Monroe
Senator Richard Blakemore
Senator Margie Foote
Senator Gary Sheerin
Senator Richard Bryan (1:00)
Senator William Raggio (1:10)

OTHERS PRESENT: See Exhibit "A"

A.B. 28: Provides for state fire marshal to adopt minimum standards on installation
of mobile homes in mobilelome park.

Senator Monroe moved to amend by striking subsection 2.

Mr. Dan Quinan said that section actually affects the construction of mobile homes and
said that was already in the law. He said 501A is an entirely new standard which they
are hoping to adopt. The language in the original law was to provide the State of
Nevada a way to exceed the standards if necessary. Senator Monroe said they would

be authorizing them to adopt standards under two national programs and under subsection
2, you can go higher. Mr. Quinan said they could say in reference to Section 501A, that
subsection 2 does not apply. Mr. Quinan said subsection 2 addressed itself to the con-—
struction of the mobile home. Senator Foote corrected him an read from the bill sub-
section 2. Mr. Quinan then said he would have no objection to striking subsection 2.

Senator Monroe moved to amend and do pass.

Senator Sheerin seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimous. Senators Bryan and Raggio were absent at this time.
Senator Monroe was assigned to get the amendments.

A.B. 256: Increases minimum wage for employees in private employment.

- There was discussion about the amendment to change "outside salesperson" to "person."
After discussion by committee, the following action was taken.

Senator Sheerin moved a do pass on the first reprint.

Senator Blakenmore seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimous. Senators Bryan and Raggio were absent at this time.
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S.B. 300: Prohibits unauthorized motor vehicle repair and requires cost estimates and

invoices of charges.

Rusty Nash, Washoe County District Attorney's office, presented his amendments to S.B.
300 to the comittee. (Exhibit "B"). Mr. Robert Guinn, Nevada Franchised Auto Dealers,
also presented his amendments to_S.B. 300 to the committee. (Exhibit "C").

Mr. Nash stated his amendments were added at the request of the garage people. Senator
Sheerin asked Mr. Nash to explain the differences between his amendments and Mr. Guinn's
amendments to S.B. 300. Mr. Nash said there were two basic differences: 1) whether the -
estimate should be mandatory or at the request of the customer. Mr. Nash said he had
worked out a compromise that would allow the customer to waive in writing that require-
ment. 2) difference in the penalty section. He made an additional suggestion to what

he had already proposed, and that would be the language would reflect the civil penalty
would not exceed $250 the first time, etc., and leave it up to the judge so that the
garage would be protected in the equitable cases.

Senmator Sheerin then asked Mr. Nash to state his philosophv concerning the first differ-
ence. Mr. Nash stated the customer should be aware of his right to an estimate or he
will not get one. By making the estimate mandatory you are getting estimates in all cases.
He stated they were willing to compromise by saying the customer could execute in writing
a waiver to his right for an estimate. Senator Sheerin asked if the garageman could
charge for the estimate. Mr. Nash stated that under current law the garageman has every
right to charge for the estimate as long as the customer is informed. Ile stated that
was not in his bill but he would not be adverse to putting it in. Senator Monroc stated
he would object very strongly to charging for the estimate. Senator Blakemore stated
there were cases where an estimate should be charged for because of the time spent to
make the estimate.
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Senator Sheerin then asked Mr. Robert Guinn to state his philosophy. Mr. Guinn the
testimony of the dealers had been that to give an estimate to cach person would compel
you to get additional personnel or engage in extensive delays to the customer. He

stated the philosophy here is that the bill mandates that there be present on the premise
a substantial sign displayed in the areas that the customer frequents notifying them that
they are entitled to the estimate. If the garageman is requested to give an estimate,

he will do so. Once he has made the estimate he may not exceed by 20 percent or $40,
whichever is greater, without notifying the customer. Mr. Guinn stated there was a pro-
vision for the situation where a person brings in a car, asks for an estimate, and then
says he will not be available for call back. In this situation he could waive in writing
his right to be called back.

Senator Sheerin asked if they would charge for the estimate. Mr. Guinn said it was in
their bill, but if it was going to cause problems it would be left out. Senator Monroe
stated again he was against charging for the estimate. There was discussion among the
comittee members about charging for the estimate. '

Senator Echols said they were going to have to compromise. Senator Sheerin stated he
thought they were not going to get any closer on their amendments. Senator Blakemore
stated he was going to vote against the bill because he had talked to his people and

they all felt the bill was too broad and was not really solving anything. Senator Sheerin
said he would support the garagemen amendments.

Senator Monroe moved to adopt the garagemen's compromise by amending to leave out sub-
section C in Section 4. Senator Echols said he would concede to that. Senator Foote
said she liked the amerdment that did not make the estimate mandatory. ‘

Senator Foote asked if anyone kept a file on crank consumers. Mr. Lawler and Mr. Nash
both said they had repeat customers and they knew who they were.

Senator Monroe moved amend and do pass.

Senator Sheerin seconded the motion.

Senator Blakemore voted no. Senators Bryan, Echols, Foote, Sheerin, and Monroe voted aye.
Senator Raggio was absent.

Senator Sheerin was appointed to get the amendments and speak on the floor.

_S.B. 301: Regqulates repair work on consumer goods and provides penalties.

Rusty Nash, Washoe County District Attorney's Office, passed out his amendments to S.B.
301. (Exhibit "D"). The amendment would change the record requirement from two years
to one year. It would also require that in order for someone to prosecute under civil
penalty, he would have to willfully violate the provisions. The only other thing was
the scope of the consumer goods definition. Someone had suggested this be limited to
just appliances and electrical goods. Mr. Nash stated that one way to change it to
limit it to that would be to eleminate subdivision three of section 3, which defines
consumer goods. Under section 4 instead of service dealer you could define electronics
service dealer. Mr. Nash said with that revision the repair dealers would be in accord
with the bill.

aveyr-
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Senator Blakemore asked why mobile homes were excluded. Mr. Joe Lawler, Consumer Affairs,
said that each appliance in a mobile home carries its own warranty. Mr. Nash said that
mobile homes were under the fire marshal's jurisdiction. There was a short discussion
about the exclusions. '

Senator Monroe moved to amend to removed subsection 3 and add electronics service dealer
and do pass.
Senator Bryan seconded the motion.

Mr. Steele asked if it could be up to $250 on the first violation, up to $500 on the
seoond violation, and up to $1000 on the third violation, and let the judge use his
discretion on what the penalty should be. Mr. Nash stated he would be in accord with that.
The words "not to exceed" would be added in sub a, sub b, and sub c.

Senator Monroe then moved to amend and do pass.
Senator Bryan seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously with all members present and voting.

Senator Bryan will get the amendments and speak on the floor.

S.B. 343: Places restrictions on cancellation or nonrenewal of automobile liability
- insurance policies.

Senator Raggio and Senator Bryan had both spoken to Dick Rottman, Insurance Comuissioner,
about S.B. 343, Mr. Rottman said to leave the law as it is because he alrcady has the
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authority to handle nonrenewal and cancellation. After a short discussion it was de-
cided to have Senator Echols speak to Senator lerr, who is the sponsor of the bill,
and see what she would like to do. o

Senator Monroe s’oated he had just been handed a letter from Mr. Quinan, State Fire Marshal,
asking them not to amend A.B. 28. He had, at the beginning of the meeting, stated that

he was not against the amendment. After a short discussion the committee decided to let
the bill leave cammittee as previously voted on.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned until p.m. adjournment of
the Senate. Senator Bryan will be excused from that meeting.

Respectfully submitted:

Kowting Zotonerw

Kristine Zohner, Committee Secretary
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SENATE

HEARING
COMMITTEE ON...... COMVERCE.. AND. LABOR : 499
Date...April.8,.1975......... Time..12:200................ Room......... 213.............
Bill or Resolution
to be considered Subject
A.B. 28 Provides for state fire marshal to adopt minimum standards
- on installation of mobile homes in mobile home parks.
A.B. 256 Increases minimm wage for employees in private employment.
S.B. 300 Prohibits unauthorized motor wvehicle repair and requires
cost estimates and invoices of charges.
S.B. 301 Regulates repair work on consumer goods and provides penalities.
S.B. 343 Places restrictions on cancellation or nonrenewal of automobile

liability insurance policies.

CORRECTED AGENDA

12 <>
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| - PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF S.B. 201 - o
e | T 410
| Section 1. Chapter 598 of Nﬁs is hgrchy‘amcndéé%by idding o
theréto the provisions sct forth as‘seétions 2 to 9, inclusivé,'
of this act. |
§pcpion 2. As used in this chapter, gpcrson"‘means'any natural
. 'person, corpoﬁation, pagtnership, association or other legal entity.
Section 3. As used in scctioné 3 to 9, inclusiye, of thié act,
ﬁnless the context requires otherwise: o
:1§ "Appliances" includes but is not\limited to air coﬂdition—
ers, refrigerators, freezers, ganges,,oyeﬁs,‘disﬁwashers, washing
machines, cléthes_dryers, garbage disposalé ana trash compéétors.
2. “Home electronic equipment" includes but‘is'not limited to
4 : d‘"ca'i;culatfors, television sets, radios, l.phonhog::.a,phs, amplifi;i:s., tuners

and other audio or video recording or playback equipment and compo-

nents,

=

"Consumer goods" means any'articié; product brrcommodiuy of
any kind or class which is used or brought for ﬁse ?rimarily for
persdnal, family or household purposes, 'The term iﬁéludes but is
not limited to appliances, home electronic equipment, bicyies, sew-

ing machines and typewriters. The term specifically excludes motor

vehicles, mobile homes, trai]ers,'aircraftIE motorboats, and vessels.,
o E [ o . )
52#&‘§”f“”“ ‘ s '
4. " "Service dealer" mecans a persoin who, for compensation, engages
in the bhusiness of repairing, servicing, maintaining or diagnosing
malfunctions of consumer goods, but dees not include a person per-

forming repairs that he is licensed to perform by the state contrac-

' tors' bhoard.

T e e e = o e
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5. "Service" or ""ch\cc work" mecans all repairing, ser vicing,

411

. mau\talnlng or dldgnOblng of nalfunotton of consumcr goods. for

compansaulon E '
‘se Section 4. l.(a) If a customer requé ;ts an estimote for

repairs necessary for a specific job, the service deal-' shall
make such an estimate in writing,>which éstimate Qhali‘include
ﬁarts and labor, and the service dealer may not cha rge for work
done or parts supplied in exces§ of the estimate without prior
éonseht of the customer. The estimate shall be signed by the -

- customer and by the service dealer 6r by a4person anthorized by
the ser#ice\aéaler to make thc estimaté and a copy of the estlmaue

"shall be given to tha customer before any work is started

)

If a éervice dealer intends to charge a fee for{preparing
. - a ;vrittan estimate, he shall advise the customer of the amouﬁi;
of such fee in writing prior to- the prenaratlon of said wrltten
~estinate,
{c) ©No service deaierrshall charge for work doné or parﬁsisup—

plied in excess 6f the written esfimate without prior cral or‘ 
written consent of the customer; and if such consant is cral, the
service dealer shall make a notation on the invoice of tﬁe date,
time, hame of the person authorizing tﬁe additional repairs; téle—
pho-e number,.ifﬁ5ny, name bf the person receiving such oral con-
scnt, conditions of such consent, if any, together with a spacifi-
cation of the additional parts and labor and the total additional

cost,



2. A service dealer may charge for the making of a secrvice
'call without héviﬁg obtained written authorization from the éh§—1212
tomcr, but the service dealer shall orally inform‘thc~¢ﬁstomef |
of the amount of any such charge at the time the custoher re-—
,qucsts\thc sprQice call,

3. If a charge is to Ee made fof aiagnosiﬁg a malfunction,
S oxr for'reassembiiné‘thélunit if the customer doesinotlauthorize
repairs, the service dealer shall disclose each such chargs to
the customer orally as well as in the work order authorizing_such
diagnbsis or any disassembly or reassenmbly. Such wofk Qrdér shall
be signed by the customer and by the service dealer or by a pe;sdn
authbr12¢a by therservicevdealer, and é copy of such work order
shall be’giveﬁ té the customer before any such-diagnbsis or any
disassémbly or reassemrbly is commenced. | |

§§g§ig§_§. 'No charge may be made for‘serviceﬂwork dorne orkéarts
éuéplied in excesé of the priéé estimated in the work ofder withéut‘
the conseﬁt of the customer,xéhich shall be obtaincd after it is"
determined that the estimated price is insufficient and before the
‘\xadditional parts>are'éupp1ied. '

Section 6. 1. All service work done by a service dealer, in-
cluding all warranty work, shall be recorded on a stétement‘cf
: A _ N
- charges which shall contain:
A (a) A description‘of all service work done and parts supplied;
(b) If\thercustomer so requests at the time the work order
~is taken, an itemization of each part supplied with its éart~number

and price, but miscellanecous small parts may be collectively de-

.



scribed and priced; - : . 4i3
| A{c) AAélcar ’dentification aé such of ény uéed, rebuilt or
,rocondwtlonmd plrL supp]1vd- | o

() Tne fuct that a part of a component systim rcpamr is
4Composed of‘bnth new and’used, rcbullt or reconditioned parts,
 whéra that 15 the case; - e |

 .(8) The fact that any part of thn scrv10e wuxk‘was subcon-
‘@%écﬁe&ﬁt@‘an@ﬁher servxce @®aIer, where that.Ls the case;

)(f) lSeparate subtotals of cha:ges‘fbr service work and'for_
'fparts, not'including sales tax, and sepéfate Stqtements bfﬁtAev
“sales téx, if an?, apnllcable to each subtotal;

(g) The hourly rate ot 1abo& and uhe number of hours charge
aa | | L

(h) The fact tha£ the hoﬁfé cﬁargeé:aré nbt ﬁhe actual‘heﬁrsv
worked but are an estlmate by a flat-rate manual, where tk €
ls.the case, and in such case, the flauarate manual shall be identi-

o . - :’“' .
fied by name. :

‘ 2. The service dealer shali giﬁgyone copy of the-statéﬁgni of
‘chargos'td the customér and retain one copy in his files for at
-least 1 year, | ) .

Section 7. IFf the cﬁstomer éo reqﬁésts at the time the work
orde:.is taken, the service doaler shall return replacnd parts
"to the customer at the time of the completion of tnn work, cxcept

such parts as the service dealer must return to the manufacturer
cor distributor under a warranty arrangement. If paxﬁs rmust Dbo
returned tq the manufacturer or distributor, the dealer at the time
the work order is taken shall offer to show, énd upon acceptance

of such offer shall show, such parts to the customer upon com-

Mcotion of the work.



Seétion‘é. A service dealecr who has performed scrvice work fild’
’juﬁpon‘ccasumer goods shall not detain suchgoods pursuant to a | |
common léw or statutory lien fér such work, and is not otharwisé
:éntitled fo the benefit of such lien, or to sue on any contract
trjfor the»servicc work done by him, uﬁless he has compligd with
-the féquifements.of.sections 4 to 7, inclusive of this dct.
Sectibn 9. 1. AnyAperson who, in the course of hié“business
or occupation, knowingly violates the provisions of sections 4
ﬁo 7, inclusive, éf‘this act is engaging in a déceptivé tradei
;praética. 'Any such violation is subject to the provisions of
NRS 598;360 to 598.640, inclugive.. B |
. 2. The attorney general, commissioner of conéumer affairs or
'any district attorney may bring an aétion to récover frém,any
_4garsoﬁwmho:willfﬁlly'fails to comply in any méterial respoct
_w&in the prov ions of sections 4 to 7, inclusive, of this act,
T A
(a) $250 for the firs t v101at16//~)/?uyb‘é7 -
44
blg ¢

- 1c) 4 '$1,000 for the third or any sugsqu;nt violation.

;a c1~11 penalty as fOllUﬂS'
500 for the seceond violation.

In any action brought pursuant to NRS 598.540 and NRS 598.570
'to»598.6b0, inclusive, the civil pena?ty provided in this sub-
‘section may be recovered in addition to the penalties provided in
subsections 1 and 3 of NRS 598.640, |
3. Such civil penalties shall be in addition to any other
‘pcenalty or remedy available for the enforcement of sccﬁions 4 to 7,

inclusive, of this act.




4;-‘Poroany‘violation,by‘an employece of a service dealcr, | A@jf;
the cmplo ree and thc service dealer are jointly liablo. :
‘section 10. MRS 598.410 is hercby amended to read anifollows;
598.4]0 A'ponson engdgcs in a “doceptive<trado praciico” whon
in the course of‘his business or ocoupétion hes
"—l.-oKhowingly passes off goods or setVioeo as those of
anothor, - o |

2. ‘Knowingly makes a false repre entdtlon as to Lhe sources,

sponsorship, approval or certification of goods or services,

‘3. Knowingly makes a false representation as to affiliation,

~connection, association with or certification by another,

,4; Uses deceptive'representations or designations of geo-
grap~1c orlgln in connection with goods or SCLVlcea.

5. Knowingly makes a false representation as to the characteris-

+ties, ingredients, uses, benefits;’altez tions or quantities of

goods or services or a false representation as to thc sponsorship,

Aapproval,»status, afflhatton or connection of a person therevlvh.

6. Represe ntc that goooq are original or new if he knows or

should know that they are detelloraoed altered, reconditioned,

~reclaimcd u"ed or gecondn nd.,

.« *

7. Represents that goods or services are of a particular

standard, quality or grade, or that goods are of a particular

‘style or model, if he knows or should know that they are of another,

8. Dbisparages the goods, services or business of another by
false or misleading representation of fact.

9. Advertises goods or services with intent not to sell

thom as advertised,

10. Advertises goods or services with intent not to supply




7‘ h e
reasonably expectable public demand, unless the advcrtl <menk :
. ~discloses a limitation of quantity.

11, ‘Advertisos under the guiso of obtalnlng sales parsonnel
whcn in facL the pucpo“, i~.to first uel] a product“or service:
to- Lho sales peLsonnel ahpllsdnt

12. Hakes false or mlelfadlng StdttﬁgQLg of faci co“cervxpg

K the prlce of goods or serv1c or the ruasonv fg: exlqteqcehpf ‘

4:®§ amounts of pflcc reductions.

,fl3. Employs “balt and switch® advcrtLSLHg, whlch con31St

‘of an attractlve but 1ns;ncer°'offer to qell a product or sc¢ rv1c»

'5fe whlch the seller in truth does noL lntend ox deSLre to sell

i ‘accompanied by one or more of the folloulng prdctlces-'

t (é)' Refusal to show Lhe prod uct aQVELtLSEQ

‘(gs, Dlsoaragement in any matcrlal respect of the advertlsed
. produCe or the terms of sale. | pE |
o | (cjevRequlrlng tle—ln sales.efioﬁhcr qﬁ&iselcsed cenditiohe 

..
'.t.
.

" to be met prior‘to selling’the advertised prdduct orvservicelwr

(d) Refusal to take erders for ﬁhe prodhct.advertised for deliveryx
Qithinsa reasendwle tinme, - - Sl | ) .
(é) Show1ng or domonstratlng a- defectlve producL whlch lor
1unusable or lmpractlcal,for the purposes set forth in the adver-
tisement. ’ | | | | L
(f) Accepting a depesit for the prodﬁct and subgequonﬁlyr
switching the purchase order to a higher priced item.
:\‘ (g) Failure to make deliveries of the product within a rcason-

able time or to make a refund therefor,



L Alld; .Koowingly fails to identify flood—damagcd or water-

_ damageddgoods as to such ddmages. .

. S 15, “Solio ; by telephone or door to door as 4 a seAlchL‘", un;
,1C§5ith§-59119r identlfledrhlmself, vhom he represents and tne‘

.purpose of his call within 30 seconds.aftor teginning the con-
VﬂLsatlon .

Know1 gly states tnat serv1ces, LoplaCCmont par oxr

"nepalrs are needcd when no such serv1ces, replaCement parts or

erepalrs are actually needed

3f17 1Know1ngly v1olatCs the prOVlS10nS of sectlons 4 to 7,
1nclu51ve "of this act, relatlng to repalr of consum“r goods

Sectlon 11, NRS 598.510 is hereoy amended to read as folTo S e

{;598.510. vhen the comm1551oner has eause to belleve that any perQV
o son has ehgaged or is engaglng in any deceptlve trade pract:c
' . he may: ,‘ : | SEa

1.- Request such person to £: le a statement or repore in writing

uhder oath or othcrw1se on such fogms as shall_beAprescrlbed
by tne commtssloner as to.all facts and'circomStances concerning>
the sale or advertlsement of pxoperty or the service of consum r,.
goods as dcflned 1n section 3 of thls aCL by such person, and
such other data and lnformatlon as he may decm necessary.
'j?*2.  Exam;ne under oath any person ;n connectlon with the sale
”ofiadvertisement ofrany,property or‘thc.service of consumer goods
as defined io section 3 of this act, |

3. Examinc any property or sample thereof, rccord, book, docu-

"ment, account or paper as he may decm necessary.

‘ 4., Make true copies, at the expense of the consumer affalirs

division of the department of commerce, of any roecord, book, docu-
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“ment, account ov paper examined, as provided in subsection 3
of this section, which copies may be offcred into evidence in .

w*lieu of the originalé thercof in actions brought pursuant to

ﬁ{NRq Jge 530 and 598, 540.

,5.' Purﬂuart to an order of any dv lect court, iﬁpCuné any

”_sample of px Opfrty wulch 15 matcrlal uO aucn dcv_ptlve trad

o practhL and retaln the ptooﬁr ty in h;s pos» rssion uﬂtll cotm-

Tp%etlcn‘cf alI yfwaee@ing“ as providéd “In NRS 590 360 to 598 64

Anélu51ve An order Shdll not oe 1SSued pursuant to ths sub-
;éecLlon unless thu comm1551oner and tne court gqu thc accused
t’full ovpofﬁunlty to’ be h@ard and unluss the commLSSLOncr provab
btby clear and conv1n01ng LVldmnCe that the bu31ness aCthlLleS

”; 01 the accused wxll not bo 1mpa1rud tnereby.

Sectlon 12. NRS 598 530 is hereby amOnded to r;ad as follows-

. 598 530 ‘ If any purqou fa:Ll_, to coop=rate wz.‘.h any J.nvestlgatlo.-,

'fﬁ,as prov1dod in NQS 598. 510 or 1f any pnrson falls to obey a sub—

'(

- poena 1asu°d by the commissioner, the commissionar may apply to

ji;agy dlst;}ct cpurt‘for equltable relief, Such épplication shall
 §£até reaééhable grouﬁds showing that suchAreiief’is necessary té
: termlnate or pxevent a deceptlvn trade practice, IfAthé court is
A:satl sfied of sucb reaqonablu grounds, the court may:

i'l..,Granu injunctive rellef restralning the sale or écvertise-
;mént of any property or the service of consumer goods as dafined
in seétion 3 of this act by such persdn. | | |

2. Require the attendance of or the production of documcﬁts

-: by such peréon, or both.
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‘ . Sectlon 13 MRS 598.640 is ~herchy amended to read as follows:
o 598 640 1. Any peLson who violates any court rdrr or injunction>
"1ssu00 purguant to NRS 598.360 to 508.u30 inclun{vey upon a

comulwlnt brought by thc comn ”‘loner oF tbr dlSurLCt attorn j

ST

” :g'oL‘any county of thlS staLo shdll forftlt and pay Lo ho gcnt~u1

;:fund};n he state treasury a c1v11 ponalty of not more Lhan $10 OOO _'

S for'each vwolatlon For the purpoge of tnlq sectlon the court
"f.lssulng any such order or 1n3unctlon shall retaln jurlsdlL
over any such action or proceedlng. Such c1v11'penalt1es shalT

 be in addltlon to any othbr penalty or renedy avawlable for the

enforcement of the prov1alons of NRS 593. 360 to 590 630 1nc1u51ve.f
2.A_In any- actlon brought pursuant to NRS 598, 540 and N\S 598, 570

.,;Lo 598 600, 1nclu81ve 1f the court flnos that any p son has

*Wlllfully cngageu in a daCLpth“ trade prattlce enuwarafed in

\ié') ctlons 1 to le, 1nclu51ve of NRS 998 410 the conmLSSLOner'
tor the dlstrlct attorney of anf county in th1s stdtc brlnglng such
1actlon may recover a c1v1l pnnalty not to exceed $2 500 for each

~ violation. o | " | B

3. -Any petson' firm;:of any officer of'manacinwvagelt otianv
corporatlon or asdoc1atlon who knowlnguy and “111Fully enqaaes in

a dtceptlve trade practlcc cnumerattd in NR 5)8.410 shall be pun-—

1shed; | s o o

(2) For the first or oecond offehse, for a misdcﬁoanot.
(b) For the third offense and all subs equont offenqcu; for~a7

. gross misdemeanor..



work.

11,

.
“4. ‘As used in this soctlon the tcrm "violation" includas

a rcpetltlve or contlnuou VLolatlon aris ing out of the samz . -

:{aet.

A

Section 14. NRS 108. 70 is hercb/ am’nded Lo LcaJ as feligwe:f

.108.370 :l; hvery Subject to the. prOVL‘lonq o~ S“Ltlon 8 ot ﬁhis

”;'act"every person Clrm or COLpurethh engaged in perfoqmln»'
'/ * work upon any waech cJOpm‘or gevelry,,for a prlce shall ‘have

e a llen upon tne watcn clock or Jewelry for the amount Of any

account Lhat maj be due for the work done tnereon The 11eq

snall also 1nclude the value or agreed prlCG, lf any, @f all

ematerlalsAfurnl h d by the llenholder in connectlon Wlth the  j »

'

'2; Nif eny account"fof Qork done:efnmeterieis’furnishea hall
remaln unpald fcr 1 year aFtelvcomplct1nc the wock the llen—
holder may,‘upon 30 days' notice in wrltlng to the owner sneei—i
fylng the amount due and lntormlng hin Lhat the payment ef
the amount due within 30 days w11l enultlu hlm to redeem thm
property,lsell anj such art1cl° or artlcles at pulec or bona

flde prlvate sale to satlsfy the account

“3. The notlce may be served by re glstered or certlfled mqil

with rcturn receipt demanded, directed to the owner's last~knuun

~address, or, if the owher or his address be unknown, it may bo

“posted in two public piaces in the town or city where the proporty

is located.




’

-4.  The proceeds of thc sale, after paying the cuzpenscs

: t‘ncrt_of shal_l
segutgd Ty the
to the owﬁer.
;$;~ Nothing
'preventlng the

VLdea for, and

4z

first bc app11cd Lo llquld\Lc the indehtedness

lien, and tho ba1ancc, 1f»aay,

contained in this section chall be construed

llcnno]dnl from wa1van the.

sulng upon the amount 1f hek

lien herein pro=

elects to do so.

R T

as

,.ha 11l be pald ovr"r'
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SENATE BILL NO. 301- —~COMM‘I'I“I'EE ON
COMMERCE AND LABOR

Makcn 5, 1975

[RESEIUG V——

.

Rcfcrrcd to. Commiticc on Commerce dnd Labor

W
SUMM A*R"Y-—‘Rﬁguhalcsnopur» woerk on-consumer goeds-and provides pcnalncs
Fiscal Note: No. (BDR 52-229)

_ ExrLANATION—Matter in llahc: iy new; matter in brackets { ] is
material 16 be omitted.

- . .

‘AN ACT rclating to trade regulations and practices; regulating repsir work on
consumer _goods by setting requirements respecting work ordcrs statements of
charges, disclosure, notice, customer's consent and the return of rmhced parts;
providing d‘.ﬁnmons nmkmv ccrmn acts a dccepuve trads practice; proudmg
civil and criminal rv..n_xhles = ;
chacges-forautowmabile o pnio,; ‘md prowdmg other matters properly relating
thereto.. : . )

The People of the State of Nevada, re prescnted in Senate and Assembly
do-enact as follows:

Sectrion 1. Chapter 598 of NRS is herecby amended by adding
thereto the provisions set forth as s»ctions 2 to 10, inclusive, of this act.

SEC. 2.  As used in this chapter, “person” means any natural person,
corporation, parim’r.ship, association or other legal entity.

SEc. 3. As used in sections 3 to 10, mclu.\tve of this act, unless the
context requires otherwise:

1. “Appliances” includes but is not limited to air conditioners, refrig-
erators, freezers, ranges, ovens, dishwashers, washing muachines, Clozhes
dryers, gar bage disposals and trash compactors.

2. “Consumer, goods™ means any article, product or commodity of
any kind or class which is used or bought jor use primarily for personal,
Jamily or houschold purposes. The terin includes appliances, bic;cles
boats, home clectronic equipment, m-eubrﬁhhm meéor-rrlm#es sewing
machines sessilars and typewriters.

3. “Home electronic equipment” includes but is not limited to calcu-
lators, television sets, radios, phonographs, amplifiers, tuners and other
audio or ndco recor dmg or pla\hack equipment and components.

M&)PMMW : .
6}_ “Repatrthernter means a pcrson who, for compensation, uzgages
“Saniriar daelen

-~




- in the business of repairing, servicing, maintaining or diagnosing
: 1functions of consumer goods, but does not include a person per-
‘rmlng repairs that ‘he is licensed to perform by the state contrac-

tors' board

5' Repa&rhe£-sopatr—wurk“ means all repairing, servlc1ng,

maintaining or diagnosing of malfunctions of consumer goods for com-
pensation,

87——L$¥ai%eé&—és—de@iqad;a&—éﬁ—NRS~&8%7T25.

ﬁ -
’f more than $1O is to be made
rder indicating the tot

mated charge e laboryand%panﬁsy

Tvemra copy ©f suchrwork ULuer.
~ 2. A xepaisr dealer may charge for the making of a service call
without having obtained written authorization from the customer,
but the 33%5&% dealer shall orally inform the customer of the amount
- of any such ‘charge at the time the customer requests the service call.
3. If a charge is to be made for diagnosing a malfunction, or
QQZI: reassembling the unit if the customer does not authorize repairs,
e gﬁ%ﬁiﬁ dealer shall disclose each such charge to the customer

orally as well as in the work order authorizing such diagnosis or any

disassembly or reassembly.

.

Section 5. No charge may be made for resasr work done or parts sup-
"plied in excess of the price estimated in the work order without the

ecessary for ork. Whenever a work order is ¢ ired by this!
ectio work may be done, and no charges accrue before : t&~

423
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"consent of the customer, which shall be obtained after it is determined

that the estimated price is 1nsuff1c1ent and before the additional
parts are supplied.

- Section 6. 1. All repadx work done by a repaar dealer, including
all warranty work, shall be recorded on a statement of charges which

-shall contain:

(a) A description of all repair work done and parts supplied;
(k) If the customer so requests at the time the work order is
taken, an itemization of each part supplied with its part number and

price, but miscellancous small parts may be collectively described and

priced;

(c) A clear identification as such of any used, rebuilt or recon-

ditioned part supplied;

(d) The fact that a part of a component system repalred is composed

of both new and used, recbuilt or reconditioned parts, where that is
the case;

' (e) _Thg fact that any part of the repair work was subcontracted to i
n

other xeptdd dealer, where that is the case; »
(f) Separate subtotals of charges for repsrr work and for parts,

not



424

A

1. (a) If a customer requests. an estimate for repairs necessary
‘for a specific job, the service dealer shall make éuch an esti-
mate in writing, which estimate shall include parts and labor,
and the service dealer may not gharge for work done or parts sup-
plied in excess of the estimate without prior consent of the—cus;‘
tomer. The estimate shall be signed by the customer and by ﬁheV
repair dealer or by a person authoriZed’by the repair dealer to
make the estimate, and a copy of the estimate shall be given to

customer before any work is started.

"(b) If a service dealer intends to charge a fee for preparing a

 written estimate, he shall advise the customer of the amount of such

fee in writing prior to the preparation of said written estimate.

(¢) No service dealer shall charge for work done or parts supplied\

ih excess of the wriﬁtén estimate . without prior oral or written
»cdnsent of the customer; and if such consent is oral, the service
dealer shall makera notation on the invoice of the date, time, name
of the person authorizing the additional repairs,>telephone number,
if any, name of therperson receiving such oral consent, conditions
of such consent, if any, togethér with a specification of the addi--

tional parts and labor and the total additional cost.

—— - A — W p—— o mwan w0 -
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-including sales tax, and separate statcments of the sales tax, if any,
appl:cable to cach subtotal; :
(g) The hourly rate of labor- and the number of hours charged and
(h) The fact that the hours charged are not the actual hours
worked, but are an estimate by a flat-rate manual, where that is the
case, and in such case, the flat-rate manual shall be identified by
. name, :
2. The repa¥r dealer shall give one copy of the statcement of
charges to the customer and retain one copy in his files for at least
2 years,

" . Section 7. ALf the customer so requests at the tlme the werk erder is
taken, the repaer dealer shall return replaced parts to ‘the customer
at the time of the completion of the work, except such parts as the
wepart dealer must return to the manufacturer or distributor under a
warranty arrangement. If parts must be returned to the manufactursr

or distributor, the dealer at the time the work order is taken shall
offer to show, and upon acceptance of such offer shall show, such parts
to the customer upon completion of the work. :

Section 8. The consumer affairs- division of the department of commerce
shall design and approve a sign which shall be placed in all nepaer
dealer locations in a place and manner conspicuous to the public. The
sign shall give the customer notice of the provisions of sections 4 to 7,
inclusive, of this act. The sign shall, also notify the customer that

. ’ .« ’ Y ANAAT et .

inquiries and complaints regarding »epastr work may be made to the atten-
tion of the consumer affairs division of the department of commerce and
shall state the diyision's address and telephone number.

- Section 9. A xepadr dealer who has performed diagnostic or repair work
upon consumer goods shall not detain such goods pursuant to a common
law or statutory lien for such work, and is not otherwise entitiled

the benefit of such lien, or to sue on any contract for the repair work
- done by him, unless he has complied with the requirements of sections

4 to 8, inclusive, of this act,

Section 10. 1. Any person who, in the course of his business or occu-
- pation, knowingly violates the provisions of sections 4 to @, inclusive,
of this act is engaging in a deceptive trade practice. Any such viola-
tion is subject to the provisions of NRS 598.360 to 598.640, inclusive.

2. The attorney general, commissioner of consumer affairs or any

- district attorney may bring an action to recover from any person who
fails to comply in any material respect with the provisions of sections.
4 to 8, inclusive, of this act a civil penalty as follows:

(a) $250 for the first violation.

(b) $500 for the second violation.

(c) $1,000 for the third or any subsequent v101atlon
In any action brought pursuant to NRS 598.540 and NRS 598.570 to- 598 600,
inclusive, the civil penalty provided in this subsectlon may be re-
covered in addition to ‘the penaltics provlded in subsecctions 1 and 3 of
NRS 398 640.



: 3. Such civil penalties shall be in addition to any other
4drcnalty or remedy available for the enforcement of sections 4
Wto 8, inclusive, of this act.

4. For any violation by an cmployee of a wepair dealer, the
employece and the rep=isr dealer are jointly liable,

-

034‘
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Skc. 11.  NRS 598.410 is hereby amended to read as follows: =

598.410 A person cngages in a “deceptive trade pra ictice™ whcn in

the course of his business or occupation he: !

1. Knowingly passes off goods or services as those of another.

2.  Knowingly makes a false rcprucnt.mon as to the source, sponsor-
ship, approval or certification of goods or services.

3. Knowingly makes a falsc representation as to affiliation, connce-
tion, association with or certification by another.

4. Uses deceptive representations oF designations of ge ovraphlc origin-
in conncection with goods or scrvices.

5. Knowingly makes a false representation as to the ch.uac(cnstlcs
ingredients, uses, benefits, alterations or quantities of goods or services
or a false representation as to the <ponsor<h1p, appr oval, status; affiliation-
or conncction of a person therewith.

6. Represents that goods are original or new if he knov.s or should"
know that they are deteriorated, altcrcd rccondmonud reclaimed, used

or sccondhand. . . ,
7. Represents that goods or scrvices are of a pamcular <tandard

quality or grade, or that goods are of a pnrtlcular style or model, if he
knows or should know that they are of another. -

8. Disparages the goods. services or business:of another by false or

misleading representation of fact.

9. Advertises goods or services with mtcnt not to sell them as adver-
tised.

10.  Advertises goods or services with intent not to su’pp]y reasonably -

expectable public demand, unless the advertisement discloses a limitation
of quantity.

11.  Advertises under the guise of obtaining sales pgr<onnel \\hen in
fact the purpose is to ﬁrst sell a product or service to the <aks personnel
applicant.

12. Makes false or misleading statements of fact congerning the price
of goods or scrvices, or the reasons for, e\mtuncc of or amounts of price
reductions. ¢ . -

13. Employs “bait and switch” advertising, which consists of an
attractive but insincere offer to sell a product or service which the seller
in truth docs not intend or desire to sdl accompanied by one or more of
the following practices:

(a) Refusal to show the product advertised.

(b) Disparagement in any material respect of the adv ertw’d product or
the terms of sale.

(c) Requiring tic-in sales or other undmdoccd condmons to be met -

prior to selling the advertised product or service.

(d) Refusal to take orders for the product adv c-r(m.d for delivery
within a reasonable time.

(c) Shomnq or de mon\tratmg a defective: prodnct \\hich is unusable
or impractical Tor the purposes sct forth in the advertisement.

(f) Accepting a deposit for the product and subsequently switching the

" purchasc order to a higher priced item.

(g) Failure to make deliveries of the product within a rmxonablc time
or to make a refund ﬂu refor. : . .

¥

. .
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¢ ——ert R —— v o—




00 DI DO DS D) b boud ok o bt b ok o] ok )
%OJMHO(DNQQU‘*WBHO@@QQU‘*WNF‘

DN O B B
cooo-qcsg:

¥

e —— ..

14. Knowingly fails to :dLnnfy flood-damaged or w.llu (hnngcd
goods as to such damages.

15.  Solicits by telephone or door to door as a seller, unless the sclier

identifics himself, whom he represents and the purpose ‘of his call within -
30 scconds after beginning the conversation. .

16. Knowingly states that scrvices, replacement parts or repairs are .
nceded when no such services, replacement parts or repairs are actually
needed.

17.  Knowingly violates the provisions of sections 4 to 8, inclusive, of
this act, relating to repair of consiuner goods.

SEC. 12.  NRS 598.510 is hercby amended to. read.as follows:

'598.510 When thc commissioner has cause to-believe that-any person
has cngagcd or is engaging in any deceptive trade practice,.he.may:

1. . uest such person to file a statement or report in writing under
oath or ot(}xerwme on such forms as shall be prescribed by the commis-
sioner, as to all facts and circumstancés concerning the sale or advertise-
ment of property or theg"'“n..pmwiﬂ consumer goods as defined in section 3
of this act by such person, and such other data and information as he may
deem necessary.

2. [Examine under oath any person in_conncction with the sale or
advertisement of any property [.] or the Fepir Of consumer goods as’
defined in section 3 of this act.

3. Examine any property or sample thereof, record, book, documcnt,
account or paper as he may decm necessary.

4. Make true copies, at the expense of the consumer affairs division
of the department of commerce, of any record, book, document, account

or paper examined, as prO\lde in subscction 3 of this scction, which

copies may be offcred into cvidence in licu of the originals thereof in
actions brought pursuant to NRS 598.530 and 598.540.

5.  Pursuant to an order of any district court, impound any sample of
property which is material to such deceptive trade practice and retain the
property 1n his possession until completion of all proceedings as provided
in NRS 598.360 to 598.640, inclusive. An order shall not be issued pur-.

suant to this subscction unless the commissioner and the court give the-

accused full opportunity to be heard and unless the commissioner proves
by clear and convincing evidence that the busmcﬂs activities of the accused
will not be impaired thereb ’

Sec. 13. NRS.598. 530 is hcrcby amended to read as follows:

598.530 If any person fails to cooperate with any investigation, as

provided in NRS 598.510, or if any person fails to obey a subpena issued
by- the commissioner, the commissioner may apply to any district court
for equitable relief. Such application shall state reasonable grounds show-
ing that such refief is necessary to terminate or prevent a dgccpuvc trade

- practice. If the court is satisfied of such reasonable grounds, the court

may:
I. Grant injunctive relief restraining thc s:ﬂc or advertisement of any
property or rlwm
by such person.
"2, Require the 'mcnd"mcc of or thc productmn of documents by such
person, or both. -

of consumer goods as defined in section 3 of this act

!

.t

.",4\28:? 3
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3. Grant other relief necessary to compel compliance by such person.

SEc. 14. NRS 598.640 is hereby amended to read as follows:
598.640 1. Any person who violates any court order or injunction

issued pursu.nnt to NRRS 598.360 to 598.630, inclusive, upon a complaint

brought by the commissioner or the district attorncy of any county of this
state shall forfeit and pay to the general fund in the state treasury a civil
penalty of not more than $10,000 for ‘cach violation. For the purpose of
this section, the court issuing any such order or injunction shall rctain
jurisdiction over any such action or proceeding. Such civil penalties shall

be in addition to any other penalty or remedy. available for the enforce-

mcent of the provisions.of NRS-598:360: to- 598630, inclusive.
2. In any action broyght pursuant to NRS.598.540.and NRS 598.570

to 598.600, inclusive, if the court finds that any person has willfully

engaged in a deceptive trade practice enumerated 1n subsections 1 to 16,

inclusive, of NRS 598.410, the commissioner or the district attorney of ‘

any county in this state brmomg such action may recover a uvxl penalty
not to cxceed $2,500 for each violation.

3. Any person, firm, or any officer or managing agent of any corpora-
tion or association who knowingly and willfully engages in a deceptive
trade practice cnumerated in NRS 598.410 shall be punished:

(a) For the first or second offense, for a misdemeanor.

{b) For the third offense and all qubuqucnt offenses, for a gross mis- .

demeanor.

4. As uscd in this section the term \xoLmon includes a rcpcunve .

or continuous \xo}anon ansmﬂ cmt of thc same act

108.270 Subject to the proxmonc of NRS 108 315 L1 and sggmn
{§ act, anmy person of TMErsons, compiny or corporation engaged in
the busi
garage or alrport, or plncc for the storage, maintenance, kecping or repair
of motor vehicles or airplanes, motorey c]Ls motor opafrplane equipment,
g a trailer p'xrk for rentah of parking ‘space for
trailers, and who in-dteunection therewith s#dres, maintains, I\ups or
repairs any motor vchicleyrplane, momr
ment, or trailer, or furnisheSN\yccesso
therefor, at the request or with con%nt of the owner or its or his
representatives, or at the dxe),u(ﬁ ofany peace officer or other author-
ized person who orders | wing or~lorage of any vchicle through
any action permitted bytaw, has a licn upoms mh motor vehicle,- mrp]ane
motorcycle, motor mrp!anc equipment, or trateg, Or any pdrt or parts
thereof for the stin due for such towing, storing, niigtaining, keeping
or rcp'nrmﬂ such mntor u‘nclc airph ane, motorcyclc notor or air-
fnrms’h-

ing ap ’wsm us, fmhncs. services or eupplus thgrd'or, dnd for I costs,

such motor vehicle, .mplanc mﬁmrud; motor or mrplane cqmpmcnt,
' spraid,

Gi-tiaiarat any-tirreittstn
Sec. 1 NRS 108.370 is }unb)' amended to read as foﬂows
108.370 1. [Every] Subject to the provisions‘of section 9 of this

_act, every pcrson, firm or corporation engaged in performing work upon

-

ss of buying or sclling automobiles or airplanes, or'keeping a -’

¢cle, motor or airplane «.qmp—«
facilitics, scrvices or supplies




WD~ OO LD e

C e e g s misem e

“vessel within this sta

7..._._

any waltch, clock or jewelry, for a price, shall have a licn upon the watch,
clock or chc]ry for the amount of any account that may be due for the

“work done thercon. The Ticn shall also include the value or agreed price,
f any, of all materials furmshcd by the licnholder in connection with the

work,
2. I uny .nu.ount for work donc or materials furnished shall remain
unpaid for 1 year after completing the work, the licnholder may, upon .

30 days’ notice in writing to the.owner xpu.lf)mg the amount duc and-

informing him that the payment of the amount duc within 30 days will
enfitle him to redeem the property, sell any such article or articles at
public or bona fide private sale to satisfy the account, '

3. The notice may be served by registered or certified mail with
return receipt demanded, directed to the owner's kist-known address,-or, -

(if the owner or his, JderSS be unkpown, it may. be posted.in. two pubhc

plates in the town or city where the property is located.

4. The procceds of the sale, after payving the cxpenses thereof, s}nll
first be applied to liquidate the indcbtedness secured by the licn, and the
balunce, if any, shall be paid over to the owner.

5. Nolhmg contained in this section shall be LO!’]SU’UCd as prcuntmg
the licnkolder from waiving the lien hercin provided for, and suing upon
the amount if he clects to do so. .-

—SrCcH T RRS$TOSTTO S licieby cimvnded-to-rend-tre-fottowss——mm—

8.670 1. Every hoat or vessel used in navigating the waters of .

this stag or constructed in this state is subject to a lien:
(a) Fonyvages due to persons employed, for work done or se
rendered onbard such boat or vessel.
(b) [For] ject 1o the provisions of section 9 of thisdct, for alt
debts due to persdus, firms or corporations by virtue .of a contract,
express or implied, With_the owners of a boat or vessel, or with the
agerits, contractors or sublagiractors of such owner] “or with any pcrson
having them employed to construct, repair or I:mnch such boat or vessel,

~

on account of labor done or matcrmk{umuhcd by mechanics, tradesmen
or others in the building, repairing, fighe nd furnishing or equipping
such boat or vessel, or on account of sto:lugs\okﬂupphes furnished for the

use thereof, or on dccount of Lnumh\xays constructed for the launching
~of such boat or vessel.

f such boat or

(¢) For all sums for ,wﬁ::rfzmc, anchorage or towag

{d) For all cos sincurred in enforcing such lien. ’
2. AUM firm-or corporation cntitled to a lien as provided_in
subsectio may, without process of law, detain such boat or vessel 3
any tip)c}l is lawfully in his possession until the sum due to him is paid.

3. “The classes of claims specified in subscction 1 shall have priority.

aceaudin &-fcﬂmvﬂmﬁheh-fhey—ﬂmmmmd ——
She s A-300-1shoreby e mded-toread-asfatlows T
686A.300 7 TT‘ITI\H*FQF-\&]IQJ.SSULS vehicle-instirance shall not delay

making pd)mcnt for uny_motor Vehicle physical_damage claim after
receiving a_statement of charges, pursuant to the. pron<Rms~oL[\RS
41\-7—0%5.”_] section 5 uf this act, "from any purson or gam"c previous

t d

\
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at the insurcr to perfoim the repair fircd by such
p]lys)cn]dun.u' T T o

2. A dclay, within th Fmg-of_this scction, is f.ulurc to. issuc a
check or draft, pay: HIE to the person rePamsg or (o~ thc insured and

person repaieing jointly, within 30 days after the insd
T of charges for repair work which has been satisfac

‘SI'C 16. LP.S—MH—O;-S, 598. 190 and 5‘)8 4?&.110 hcrcby repealed.

® ?-
o

receipt of the
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- L R SENATE BILL NO. 300

n‘SECTIbN\l: Chapter 598 of '‘NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto
the provisions set forth as sections 2 to 12 inclusive, -
of thi# act.
SECTION 2: Aé used in sections 2 to 12 inclusive, of this act, un-
less thelcontext otherwise requires:
1. "Garage" meéns any business establishmeht; soie pro-
proérieforship,'firﬁ, corporation, association or other
legél éntity that engages iﬁ the business of repairing,
modifying or performing maintenance work, including all
‘ . . warranty work, on motor vehicles.
2.‘ "Garageman“ means any person who owns, operates, con-
trols or manages a garage. A
3. "Motor vehicle" means every éelf—propelled device in,
upon or‘by.which any person 1is or may be transported or
drawn upon a public highway, excepting devices used éx—
clusively upon stationary rails or tracks.
4. "person" means any natﬁrai person, corporation, firm,
association, partnership, agent, employee and other legal
entity capable of having legal rights and responsibilities.
'4 SECTI0N 3: whénever any garageman accepts or assumes control of a
' motor vehicle for the purpose of making or compleéing any
- repair, modification or maintenance work, including all
“V : | . L whnicda o demrngd 5’(‘ W Reaun, b 1500 o b
. warranty wo:k, he shall comply with the provisions of 1xum£4;

sections 4 to 10, inclusive, of this act.

T S g et i g o e 1 e



'SECTION_4:

- SECTION S:

' SECTION 6:

P.2

1. A garagoman"shall“disclose orally and in the—qukqggg‘

“order authorizing ‘a diagnosis if a charge will be made

for:

(a) Diagnosing a malfunction.
(b)’ Reassembling a motor vchicle if the customer -
does not,authofize the repair, modification 5%
maintenance aftef the motor véhicie has beeh*dis§
~assembled. |
2. The amount of any charge under subsection 1 shall be
disclosed prior to the diagnosis.
1. The person authofizing the repair, modifacation or

maintenance, including all warranty work, of a motor.-

‘vehicle shall be furnished a work order that indicates

the total estimated charge for allkparts and labor neces-

sary for a specific job.

2. The work order shall be signed by the garégeman or

by a person authorized by the garageman to make the es-
_timate of statement.

‘3. ' The person authorizing the repair, modification or

maintenance, including all warranty work, shall sign and
Ee given a copy of the work 6rder before any work: is
started.

i. fhe consent of the person authorizing the repair,
modification or maintenance wbrk, including all warranty
work, shall be obtained for any additional charges necés—
sary for the performance of such work,Aif the additional’

charges were not included in the original estimate or

statement.,
RNARIR R SR A0 QU0 - 35 L o
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. SECTION 7: Upon fcqucst of the customer at the £ime the work
| order is taken, the automotive repair dealer shall
return replaced parts to the customer at the tinte of .
the completion of the workqéxcepting such parts as may
be exempt because of size, weight, or other similar
factors fr@m‘this requirement by regulations of‘the
department and éxéepﬁiﬁg such parts as the automotive
repair dealer is required to return to the manufacturer
or distributor under a warranty arrangement. If such |
parts must be returﬁed to the manufacturer or distribu-
tor, the déaler‘at theétimeAthe work ofder is taken shall
offer to show, and upon acceptance of such offer or re-
~ qguest shall show, such parts to the. customer upon com-
pletion of the work, except that the dealer shall not
be required to show a replaced part when no cha:gé is
being'méde for the replacement part.
SECTION 8: - 1. A gafageman shall furnish the person authorizing
the repair, mbdification or maintenance of a motor véhicie,
including all warranty work, or the person entitled to
possession of the motor vehicle an invoice of the charges
which shall contain the following information:
(a) The name of the person authorizing'the repaiis;
o _ (b) A statemént of the total charges with sepafate
subtotal prices for service work and parts and the.

amount of sales tax applicable to each subtotal;
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(c)( An itéhization and description of all parts |
u;éd to repair the motor vehicle and the total
charge for each part. The invoice shall clearly -
state if:
(1) Any used,frebuilt or réconditioned“parts
were used; | |
{2y A part of a component system is composed
of new and used, rebuilt or reconditioned parts;
and |
(3) Any work was subcontracted to ‘another per=
son; ‘ |
»(df The Heurly rate of labor and the number. of hours
charged. If the hours charged are not the actuél A
 hours worked, but are hours as deterﬁined by a‘fiat—
rate manual, the invoice shall indicate that fact
and shall identify the flat-rate manual by néme; and
(e) A description of all other charges. '
2. In the case of a motor vehicle registered in the State

of Nevada no lien for labor or materials>provided.under

" NRS 108.267 to 108.360, inclusive, may be enforced by sale

or oﬁherwise unless an invoicevas described in subsection
1 has been given by delivery in person or by cerﬁified
mail to the last-known address of the registered and the
legal owner of the motor vehicle. 1In all other cases sdch
notice shall be made to the last-known address of the

registered owner and other person known to have or to

claim an interest in the motor vehicle.
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SECTION 9: The garageman shall retain copies of any work otder
. o V, _ - - or iﬁvoice required by sections 4 f.o 8, inclusive; of
| this act, as an ordinary business record of the'garagei
- for a period of not less than 1 year from the date such

work order or invoice is signed.

. SECTION 10: A garageman who has performed diagnostic or reéair work
upon a motor vehicle shall not detain the motor vghicle
pursuant to a common law or statuto?y lien for such work,
or otherwise have the benefit of such lien, nor shaii he

. have the right to sue on any contract for the repairs

done by him, unless he has complied with the requirements

of sections 4 to 10, inclusive, of this act.

o SECTION 11: 1. The consumer affairs division of the departmént of
. o o | ‘commerce shall design and abpréve a 'sign which ’shl:allv be
| ' : . : placed in all garages in a piace and mannerléonspicuous
to the public. \ Feot
2. The sign shall give the customer notice of the pro-
visions of sections 4 to 10, inclusive, of this act and
shall include a statement that;
. (a) Inquiries and complainté fegarding servicé‘may
be made to the garageman; and |
(b) Unresolved complaints may be brought to 1t:he=_h~
‘attention of the consumer affairs division of the.
department of commerce,

3. The sign shall list the address and telephone number

P - of the consumer affairs division of the department of

(‘ : . commerce,
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.’ SECTION 12: 1. Any pcrsdn who, in the course of his business or

occupation, knowingly violates the provisions of.: scc-
tions 4-11, inclusive, of this act is engaging in a
deceptive trade prazctice. Any such violation is‘sub—fl
ject to the provisions of NRS 598.360 to 598.640,‘inc1u—
sive, |
2. °“The attorney general, cﬁmmissioner of consumer
affairs or any district attorney may bring an action .to -
recover from any person who fails to comply in any material
reépect with the provisions of sections 4 to 8,1inclu—
sive, of this act a civil penalty as follows:
” (a). $250 for the first violation.
(b) $500 for the second violation.
‘ ' V - o (c). $1,000 for the third or any subsequent viblétion.
| | In any action brought pursuant to NRS 598.540 and NRS
- 598.570 to 598.600, inclusive,~the£;ivil penalty providea'
in this subsection méy be recovered in addition éo the
penalties pfbvided in subsections 1 and 3 of NRS 598.640.
3. Such civil penalties shall be in addition to any
other penalty 6r remedy available for the enforcement'of’
secéions 4 to 11, inclusive, of this act-i
4. For any violation by an employee of a repair deéler,
the employee and the repair dealer are jointly liable.

SECTEION 13: NRS 686A.300 is hereby amended to read as follows:

686A.300 1. An inshrer who issues vehicle insurance

shall not delay making payment for any motor vehicle

R o physical damage claim after receiving a statement of
charges, pursuant to the‘provisions of [NRS 487.035,}

:



SECTION 14:

section 8 of this act,~from4any person or garage

previously authorized by the insurer to perform the

repair work required by such physidél damage claim.

2. A delay, within the mecaning of this éection,'is

failure to issue a check or draft, payable to the per-

son repairing or to the insured and person repairing

" jointly, within 30 days after the insurer's receipt of

the statement of charges for repair work which has been
satisfactorily completed.

NRS 487,035 is hereby repealed.
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ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 28—ASSEMBLYMEN DREYER, LOWMAN,
HAYES, CRADDOCK AND DEMERS

JANUARY 22, 1975

PSS, SN,
Referred to Committee on Commerce . )
SUMMARY—Provides for state fire marshal to adopt minimum standards on

i‘%stlall(;l)tion of mobile homes in mobile home parks. Fiscal Note: No. (BDR
-121

D g

EXPLANATION—Matter in /falics is new; matter in brackets [ ]is
material to be omitted.

e

AN ACT to amend NRS 489.280, relating to the powers and duties of the state fire
marshal in connection with mobile home and travel trailer standards; eliminat-
ing certain rulemaking powers; providing for the adoption of minimum state
standards on installation of mobile homes in mobile home parks; and providing
other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly,
do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. NRS 489.280 is hereby amended to read as follows:
_489.280 The state fire marshal, with the approval of the commis-
sion:

1. Shall make and promulgate rules and regulations embodying the
fundamental principles adopted, recommended or issued by:

(a) The American National Standards Institute (ANSI) standard
A119.3 with respect to mobile home parks, standard A119.1 with respect
to mobile homes, and standard A119.2 with respect to travel trailers; or

(b) The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standard
501-A with respect to mobile home parks, standard 501-B with respect
to mobile homes and standard 501-C with respect to travel trailers.

2. [May make and promulgate rules and regulations embodying
standards higher than those in paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection 1
if the public health, welfare and safety require it.

3.] May make and promulgate rules and regulations pertaining to
the body and frame design and construction requirements and plumbing,
heating and electrical systems of mobile homes and travel trailers manu-
factured prior to January 1, 1968, and may, make and promulgate rules
and regulations pertaining to body and frame design and construction
requirements for mobile homes and travel trailers constructed after Jan-
vary 1, 1968 but before July 1, 1973.

A0
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SUMMARY-—Prohibits 4nauthorized motor vehicle and requires cost * -
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requiring cost estimates; mmmmmmm

 The People of the State of Nmaa, represented in Sendte md Asmbly i

do enact as follaws. ~~ 7

SecTIoN 1. Chapter 598- of NRS is ’ byaddmg.J
thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 to 13, mlnsiw,qiﬂ:isact.

SEee. 2. Asmdmmﬂami'm 13, awlzm’ve afthivact,unl&ssthe

mar;ages a garage.
. {a} A motorcycle as defined in NRS 482.0?0

oy motmtmckasdeﬁnedmNRSﬂZ.O?.?xfifssm&?v&‘mfe wezght =

doesnotexceed6600pouudx, and -
{c)4 pa&wngercarmdeﬁnedmNRSéfsz 087’

4. “Person” means a natum! person, corfpomnou firm, asmciaﬂm

or partnership. .

5. “Person authorizing repazrs" includes an insurance company, ity -
agents or represematzves, authorizing repairs to motor vehicles umlw a, -

policy of insurance.
6. “Repair” or “repairing” includes modifymg and perfomzm mai»
tenance work on motor vehicles, but does not include lubrication or oil

change, repairing or changing tites, or replacing batterzes, wzper blades ]
. fan belts or other minor accessories. :
Sec. 3. Whenever any garageman accvpts or assumes coutmi af a
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SENATE BILL NO. 301—COMMITTEE ON
COMMERCE AND LABOR

Mazcu 5, 1975 o .

* Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor

SUMMARY—Regulates repair work on consumer goods provxdes penaltwl.
Fiscal Note: No. (BDR 52-229)

g
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. . material to be omitted,
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AN ACT relating to trade practices; regulating the performance of service work on °

appliances and home electronic eqmpment, an prowdmg other matters ptop-
eerly relating thereto.

' The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senqte and Assembly.

' do enact as follows

’

SECTION 1. Chapter 598 of NRS is hereby amended by adding
thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 to 9, inclusive, of this act.

. SEC.2. As used in this chapter, “person” means any natural person, =
- corporation, partnersiup, association or other legal entity. -

SeC. 3. As-used in sections 3 to 9, meluszve, of thts acf. unless the

" context requires otherwise:

1. “Appliances” inclydes but is not limited to air condztioners, refng-

- erators, freezers, ranges, ovens, dishwashers, washing machmes, clothes

dryers, garbage disposals and trash compactors.

2. “Electronic service dealer” means a person who for compensa:
tion, engages in the business of repairing, servicing, mamtammg or diag-
nosing malfunctions 'of appliances and home electronic equipment, but
does not include a person performing repairs that he.is licensed to per-
form by the state contractors’ board.

3. “Home electronic equipment” includes but is not limited to calcu-
lators, television sets, radios, phonographs amplifiers, tuners and other
audio or video recordmg or playback equipment and components. -

4. “Service”. or “service work” means all repdiring, servicing, ma'm-
taining or diagnosing of malfunctions of appliances and home electronic
equipment for compensation.

Sec. 4. - 1. If a customer requests an estimate for service work neces-
sary for a specific job, the electronic service dealer shall make a written

estimate of the total cost, including labor and parts. The estimate shall .

.
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ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 256—COMMITTEE ON
’ LABOR AND MANAGEMENT

FEBRUARY 13, 1975
. . - —._——o—__-— N
Referred to Committee on Labor and Management

SUMMARY—Increases minimum wage for employees in private employment.
Fiscal Note; No. (BDR 53-900)

<

EXPLANATION—Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [ ] is
material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to employees; increasing the minimum wage payable to certain
employees; providing exceptions with respect to certain types of employment;
and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly,
do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. NRS 608.250 is hereby amended to read as follows:

608.250 1. The minimum wages which may be paid to [male per-
sons] employees in private employment within the state are as follows:

(a) For minors: [under 18 years of age:]

(1) From [July 1, 1973, until July 1, 1974, $1.65 per hour.] July
1, 1975, until January 1, 1976, $1.95 per hour.

(2) From [July 1, 1974, $1.85 per hour.] January 1, 1976, $2.15
per hour.

(b) For persons 18 years of age or older:

(1) From [July 1, 1973, until July 1, 1974, $1.80 per hour.}
July 1, 1975, until January 1, 1976, $2.10 per hour.

(2) From [July 1, 1974, $2 per hour.} January 1, 1976, $2.30
per hour.

2. The minimum wages which shall be paid to employees within the
state who are included within the provisions of 29 US.C. § 206(a)(5)
(Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended) are as follows:

(a) From July 1, 1975, until January 1, 1976, $1.80 per hour.

(b) From January 1, 1976, until Ianuary 1, 1977, 82 per hour.

(c) From January 1, 1977, until January 1, 1978, $2.20 per hour.

(d) From January 1, 1978, $2.30 per hour.

3. The minimum wages which shall be paid to employees within the
state who are included within the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 206(b) (Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended) are as follows:





